
Traffic Advisory Panel 
Dear Member,

You are invited to attend the meeting of the Traffic Advisory Panel to be held as 
follows for the transaction of the business indicated.

Miranda Carruthers-Watt 
Proper Officer

DATE: Thursday, 4 April 2019

TIME: 11.30 am, or at the later rising of the Planning & Transportation
Regulatory Panel

VENUE: Salford Suite, Salford Civic Centre, Chorley Road, Swinton

In accordance with ‘The Openness of Local Government Bodies Regulations 
2014,’ the press and public have the right to film, video, photograph or record 
this meeting. 

The role of the Traffic Advisory Panel is consultative. Decisions in respect of
items on the agenda will be made at a future Briefing of the Lead Member for
Planning & Sustainable Development, having considered the representations
made at this meeting.

AGENDA

1  Apologies for absence. 

2  Declarations of interest. 

3  Minutes of meeting held on 7 March 2019. (Pages 1 - 2)

4  City of Salford (Hallsworth Road, Winton) (Prohibition of 
Waiting) Order 2019. 

(Pages 3 - 14)

5  Hankinson Way / Rossall Way Area, Pendleton - SBNI - TRO 
2232. 

(Pages 15 - 28)

6  Any other business. 

Contact Officer: Tel No: 0161 793 2602
Claire Edwards, Democratic Services E-Mail: claire.edwards@salford.gov.uk

Public Document Pack



This page is intentionally left blank



TRAFFIC ADVISORY PANEL 

7th March 2019

Meeting commenced:    1.00 p.m.
         “           ended: 1.25 p.m.

PRESENT: Councillor Antrobus, Lead Member for Planning & Sustainable Development
– in the Chair

Councillors Burch, Clarke, Dawson, Dickman, K. Garrido, Hunt, Mashiter, McIntyre, Morris
and Warmisham

OTHERS IN
ATTENDANCE: Rabbi Goldberg (Minute 5)

1. WELCOME AND APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE

The Chair welcomed those present and outlined the procedure for the meeting.  He explained that the role of 
the Traffic Advisory Panel is consultative and indicated that decisions in respect of the proposals to be 
considered would be made at a future Briefing of the Lead Member for Planning & Sustainable Development, 
having considered the report along with the representations and comments made at this meeting.

An apology for absence was submitted on behalf of Councillor Linden.

2. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 

There were no declarations of interest.

3. MINUTES OF PROCEEDINGS 

The minutes of the meeting held on 17th January 2019 were agreed as a correct record.

4. CITY OF SALFORD (ANSON STREET AND MAY STREET, SALFORD) (PROHIBITION OF WAITING)
ORDER 2019

Consideration was given to a report of the Strategic Director Place which detailed objections that had been 
received to a proposal to introduce a ‘No Waiting At Any Time’ restriction, 10 metres each side at the junction 
of May Street and Anson Street, as detailed in the report.  The proposal had been put forward through the 
Eccles Highways Task Group following complaints having been received in relation to visibility splays being 
obstructed at the junction and difficulties for pedestrians to cross the road at the junction.  The purpose of the 
proposal was to ensure the availability of accessibility for turning vehicles and larger service vehicles, 
assisting in the general safe movements of vehicles, and providing improved visibility and accessibility for 
pedestrians.  

During the advertisement period, three objections to the proposal had been received and a further objection 
had been received after the advertisement period.  Following consideration of the objections, it had been 
decided that the length of the ‘No Waiting At Any Time’ restrictions be reduced to 5 metres, despite the 
advice within the Highway Code being that vehicles should not park within 10 metres of a junction.  At this 
location, the site is subject to a 20 mph speed limit and benefits from traffic calming measures.  It was 
therefore recommended that the ‘No Waiting At Any Time’ restrictions should be reduced to help pedestrians 
cross the road at the junction, provide vehicles with more visibility and leave more unrestricted areas for 
residents to park.

The Panel noted the background information provided in the report, together with the details of the objections 
and the responses that had been provided.

There were no members of the public in attendance at the meeting.

The Panel expressed general support in respect of the proposed amended scheme.

Councillor Antrobus indicated that he was minded to approve the introduction of the amended traffic 
regulation order, as detailed in the report.

Page 1

Agenda Item 3



Traffic Advisory Panel – 7th March 2019 2

5. CITY OF SALFORD (RIGBY STREET AND MAPLEWOOD COURT, SALFORD) (PROHIBITION OF
WAITING) ORDER 2019

Consideration was given to a report of the Strategic Director Place which detailed two objections that had 
been received in response to a proposal to introduce a ‘No Waiting At Any Time’ traffic regulation order on 
Rigby Street as detailed in the report.  The proposal followed a request from the East Salford Highways Task 
Group to review the traffic flow on Rigby Street due to complaints having been received from local residents 
in relation to the dangers of the two way section of Rigby Street, between Wellington Street East and 
Northumberland Street, and the potential for collisions because of the unrestricted parking on the east side 
of Rigby Street.  The two-way section of Rigby Street between Wellington Street East and Northumberland 
Street is a heavily parked street, subject to a 20mph speed limit and ‘No Waiting at Any Time’ restriction on 
the west side. 
 
In response to a request from the East Salford Highways Task Group, a consultation had been undertaken 
on a proposal to extend the one way system on Rigby Street from Wellington Street East towards 
Northumberland Street.  The proposal was not supported by local residents following which the Task Group 
approved the proposed scheme to prevent vehicles from parking close to the junctions, ensuring accessibility 
for local residents, assisting in the general safe movements of vehicles and increasing visibility at the 
junctions for both vehicles and pedestrians.

One of the objectors was in attendance at the meeting and made representations to the Panel as follows –

- The current situation is extremely dangerous.  The main issues relate to emergency vehicles being 
unable to access the area and particularly the Health Centre, and the safety of children travelling to and 
from schools in the local area.

- The proposed scheme would not resolve the issues that exist in the area.  The objector had submitted 
suggestions to the Highways Department to improve the traffic flow, which involved making some 
amendments to existing restrictions in the area and the relocation of the disabled parking bay.

Members of the Panel expressed general support in relation to the proposed scheme due to the urgent need 
to improve traffic flow in the area.  Disappointment was expressed that the proposed one-way system had 
not been supported by local residents.  Support was expressed for consideration to be given to the 
suggestions referred to above and detailed in the report.

The Chair indicated that he was minded to approve the implementation of the proposed scheme as 
advertised.

He requested that consideration be given to the suggestions that had been put forward with a view to a 
separate order being brought forward in the future.

Page 2



Page 1 of 11

Part 1 - Open to the Public

REPORT OF THE STRATEGIC DIRECTOR PLACE

TO LEAD MEMBER FOR PLANNING AND SUSTAINABLE DEVELOPMENT

TRAFFIC ADVISORY PANEL

4th April 2019

TITLE: City Of Salford (Hallsworth Road, Winton) (Prohibition of Waiting) Order 2019

RECOMMENDATIONS:

That the Lead Member for Planning and Sustainable Development consider the 
contents of this report and the deliberations of the Traffic Advisory Panel and make a 
decision to:

Approve the Traffic Regulation Order (TRO) as advertised and implement 
accordingly i.e. the objections are overruled.

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY:

A request has been received from Salford Environmental Services and approved by 
Eccles Highways Task Group to improve access issues on Hallsworth Road following 
complaints about parking on narrow part of Hallsworth Road towards a block of flats 
which prevents access by refuse collection vehicles. 

A traffic management scheme has been designed to introduce a ‘No Waiting at Any 
Time’ Traffic Regulation Order on Hallsworth Road to cover the extents considered 
appropriate by the Urban Vision engineers and Environmental Services as indicated 
on the attached legal schedule and a plan in Appendices 1 and 2.

The Traffic Regulation Order to introduce ‘No Waiting at Any Time’ restriction was 
legally advertised on 20th November 2018 for 21 days, during the time two objections 
have been received in connection to the proposal.

Page 3

Agenda Item 4



Page 2 of 11

Background

A request has been received from Salford Environmental Services and approved by 
Eccles Highways Task Group to improve access issues on Hallsworth Road following 
complaints about parking on narrow part of Hallsworth Road towards block of flats.

The inconsiderate parking prevents the refuse collection vehicle from accessing the 
block of flats to empty the bins. 

A package of measures have been drawn up to address the problems, these consisted 
of the introduction of ‘No Waiting at Any Time’ restriction on both sides of Hallsworth 
Road towards block of flats.

Therefore it was proposed to introduce ‘No Waiting at Any Time’ restriction as outlined in 
the schedules and the attached plans in the Appendices 1 and 2.

The restrictions would prevent vehicles from parking on the access road which needs to 
be kept clear to enable bin wagons to drive through and empty the bins. 

A scheme to introduce the ‘No Waiting at Any Time’ was consulted upon by the Traffic 
Management Unit, local councillors and emergency services on 13th September 2018.

Following the consultation to the proposals, no objections were received.

The scheme was subject to formal legal advertising on 20th November 2018, for 21 days 
until 14th December 2018. Letters informing of the restrictions were sent out to the 
directly affected residents. During this period two objections have been received in 
connection to the proposal. 

The Objections

The first objection is reproduced at Appendix 3. The objection is made by local resident. 
The resident is objecting to the scheme because proposal would remove parking 
provision near to the gate to the house. The resident advised that due to his wife’s 
disability he needs a disabled parking bay close to the side of the property and 
suggested to convert the grass verge to hard standing to provide disabled bay (plan 
provided in Appendix 3).

The resident also submitted a request for a disabled parking bay in December 2018.

The second objection is reproduced at Appendix 4. The objection is made by a relative of 
a local resident. The objector pointed that there are only 5 parking places at the cul-de-
sac end for 8 apartments. The objector is concerned that agencies and deliveries need 
parking places.

The objector was advised that the road is too narrow to allow any parking and 
loading/unloading is permitted subject to not causing an obstruction. With regards to 
parking places the objector was advised that they should contact landlord which is City 
West. The objector decided to withdraw the objection.

Page 4



Page 3 of 11

Consideration of the Objections

If there are no parked vehicles on the narrow section of Hallsworth Road the waste 
collection vehicle can access the bin collection point and the bins are emptied. The only 
access road is narrow where there are often parked cars. The objector is usually parked 
there and despite Environmental Services requests to him to refrain from parking there 
he continues to do so.

Urban Vision Engineers met on site with refuse collection service wagon driver to 
establish suitable place for disabled parking bay. The driver advised that they need the 
corner and narrow section of Hallsworth Road to be clear from parking to enable them to 
reverse to the collection point and empty the bins.

Therefore a letter has been sent out confirming that a disabled bay could be provided in 
front of the house (Appendix 5). The objector advised that the bay was not at the location 
he would like and that if the bay was placed at the proposed location it would still cause 
issues for coaches coming down Hallsworth Road when a game is on at Salford City 
Roosters. 

Vehicle tracking indicates that a ‘Standard’ Rigid Bus (with overall length 12m) can get 
through if a disabled parking bay (1.8m) would be provided at the identified location.

At the location proposed by the objector to accommodate a disabled bay the grass verge 
would need to be converted to hard standing, the footway would need to be narrowed to 
suit the minimum width of a bay. The bay would need to be longer to provide suitable 
access and egress from the bay and there is also street lighting column which may need 
to be relocated. Photos from a site visit are reproduced in Appendix 6.

Therefore, officers recommend that the ‘No Waiting at Any Time’ restrictions should be 
introduced as advertised to help refuse collection vehicles  emptying the bins as well as 
improving access for other large vehicles making deliveries, collections or emergencies 
at the block of flats.

The advisory on street disabled parking bay could be introduced separately if the 
objector follows the procedure sent to him on 11th January 2019 and in the letter 
reproduced in Appendix 5.

Recommendation

It is recommended that the Traffic Regulation Order be brought into effect in the original 
form scheduled at Appendix 1 hereto.

Appendix:

1. TRO schedule as advertised
2. Plan of affected area as advertised
3. Objection 1
4. Objection 2
5. Letter sent to the objector
6. Photos from site visit

Page 5



Page 4 of 11

APPENDIX 1 – TRO SCHEDULE AS ADVERTISED

PROPOSAL:

Introduction of:

‘No Waiting at Any Time’ Restriction

Hallsworth Road

West side from the extended southern kerbline of Hallsworth Road to 
the cul-de-sac for a distance of 41 metres in a southerly direction.

East side from the extended southern kerbline of Hallsworth Road to 
the back of the footway for a distance of 37 metres in a southerly 
direction.

South side from the extended eastern kerbline of Hallsworth Road for a 
distance of 5 metres in an easterly direction.

Page 6



Page 5 of 11

APPENDIX 2 – PLAN OF AFFECTED AREA AS ADVERTISED

P
age 7



Page 6 of 11

APPENDIX 3 – OBJECTION 1

Objection received by e-mail on 30.11.2018

Could you please send me the Facts of why they are putting a parking order […on…] Hallsworth Road 
and not any were else down the road this seems to be affecting me and my wife only My wife is 
disabled and requires to access our car as near to our home as possible which is on this part of 
Hallsworth Road I have asked Councillor Morris a few times for a Disabled cut in to be put in just for 
use which is doable very easy but nothing as been done So if they are coming with there Double 
Yellow lines they need to put the Disabled Bay into there costings 

Thanking You […]

Sent this Yesterday but no reply

Page 8



Page 7 of 11

Reply by e-mail on 19.12.2018

Good Morning,

Thank you for your e-mail and sorry for late reply. We received your disabled bay application and we 
need some further investigation to be done on site with regards to that bay and proposed double 
yellows.

I will get back to you as soon as I can.

Sorry for inconvenience.

Page 9



Page 8 of 11

APPENDIX 4 – OBJECTION 2

Objection received by e-mail on 17.12.2018

I am receipt of your letter regarding the proposal of the no waiting restriction on Hallsworth Road, Peel 
Green, Eccles.

Whilst I can understand the restriction being made in principle, I think it should be noted that there are 
only 5 car parking places possible for the residents who live in the 2 blocks of flats at the end of 
Hallsworth Road.

As there are 8 flats in total, I think the provision for 8 vehicles parking should be made before the 
roadside restriction is put into force. Whilst not everyone may own a car in the flats some of the 
occupants often receive visitors from Help Agencies and from relatives. In fact, I am a relative of one 
of the relatives who lives in the block and I visit him 3 or 4 times a week and stay for long periods at 
times. This relative of mine also receives visits from Help Agencies, food delivering service companies 
and supermarket delivery services, therefore it is essential adequate parking is available for these 
services.

I hope you forward these points to whoever is in control of both the car park at the end of Hallsworth 
Road and also the decision makers who are proposing the Parking Restrictions.

Thank you and Regards

Reply by e-mail on 18.12.2018

Good Morning,

Thank you for your e-mail.

The restrictions are proposed due to access difficulties for bin wagons and emergency vehicles. The 
road towards blocks of flats is too narrow to allow any parking, hence the ‘No Waiting at Any Time’ 
restriction is proposed.

With regards to the additional parking places you should contact land controller which is City West. 

Please be advised that loading and unloading is permitted from the restrictions subject to not cause 
the obstruction.

In terms of the above do you wish to withdraw or maintain your objection to the proposed scheme?

If you have any more questions please let me know.

27.12.2018

Thanks for your reply. 

We can appreciate the reasons you give for the parking restrictions and accept that the issue 
regarding car parking is a matter for City West. We will therefore will remove our initial objection to this 
plan.

Page 10



Page 9 of 11

APPENDIX 5 – LETTER SENT TO THE OBJECTOR

Page 11



Page 10 of 11

APPENDIX 6 – PHOTOS FROM SITE VISIT

Car parked at the above location is preventing bin wagon to pass through.

Car parked at the above location shows where the advisory disabled parking bay 
could be provided.

Page 12



Page 11 of 11

Deliberations of the Traffic Advisory Panel

The matter is to be considered at a meeting on 4th April 2019. The objector has been 
informed of the date of the meeting to enable them to attend.

Recommendation

That the Lead Member for Planning and Sustainable Development consider the contents 
of this report and the deliberations of the Traffic Advisory Panel and make a decision to 
introduce ‘No Waiting at Any Time’ restriction in the original form as set out in this 
report.

KEY COUNCIL POLICIES:  Local Transport Plan

EQUALITY IMPACT ASSESSMENT AND IMPLICATIONS:

N/A

ASSESSMENT OF RISK: 

Implementation of the restrictions would improve access for bin wagons and 
emergency vehicles.

LEGAL IMPLICATIONS: N/A

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS: The costs will be met from the Eccles Highways 
Devolved Budget Capital for year 2018-2019 as approved in Delegated Decision 
Notice on 31.01.2019.

PROCUREMENT IMPLICATIONS: Natalia Woszczyk x2220 22/03/2019
Urban Vision Partnership was procured through a fully compliant OJEU process.  The 
services outlined within the report are delivered under the exclusivity agreement in 
line with the Council’s contractual standing orders.

HR IMPLICATIONS Supplied by: N/A 

OTHER DIRECTORATES CONSULTED: None

CONTACT OFFICER: Judyta Szylejko       TEL NO: 0161 779 6097
WARD TO WHICH REPORT RELATES: Winton

Ben Dolan
Strategic Director, Place

Page 13



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 1

 Part 1 - Open to the Public 
 

 

 
 

 
REPORT OF THE STRATEGIC DIRECTOR PLACE 

 
 

TO THE LEAD MEMBER FOR PLANNING & SUSTAINABLE DEVELOPMENT 
 

TRAFFIC ADVISORY PANEL 
 

4th April 2019
 

 
TITLE: Hankinson Way/Rossall Way Area, Pendleton - SBNI – TRO 2232 
 

 
 
RECOMMENDATIONS:  
 
That the Lead Member for Planning & Sustainable Development consider the 
contents of this report and the deliberations of the Traffic Advisory Panel and make a 
decision to: 
 
Consider the objections and introduce amendments to the scheme as detailed in this 
report. 

 
 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY:  
 
Salford City Council in conjunction with Transport for Greater Manchester (TfGM) has 
developed a series of measures across Salford and Bolton (SBNI) to make the 
transport network more efficient. It aims to make travel easier for everyone, including 
public transport users, drivers, pedestrians and cyclists. Bus passengers in particular 
will see quicker, more reliable journey times. 

The improvements will also help encourage economic growth by providing better 
access to employment opportunities, health, education, retail and leisure facilities. 

Funding for the improvements has been supported by Central Government through 
the Greater Manchester Growth Deal.  

A scheme has been identified for the Salford Shopping Centre area, bounded by 
Hankinson Way, Rossall Way and Pendleton Way in Pendleton to improve the 
highway infrastructure, layout and road safety for buses, general traffic, cyclists and 
pedestrians. 

This scheme seeks to introduce measures such as improved bus stop arrangements, 
wider footways and improved crossing facilities for pedestrians, and a 20mph Speed 

Page 15

Agenda Item 5



 

 2

Limit with associated traffic calming measures to improve road safety in the 
Hankinson Way, Rossall Way area. 

As part of the scheme a restricted parking zone, except for parking in marked bays 
will be provided, with taxi rank and loading bays provided to service facilities in the 
area. 

The Speed Limit Order (SLO) to introduce the 20mph Speed Limit Zone was 
advertised on the 21st February 2019 for a period of 24 days and received one 
objection. (Objector 1) 
 
The Traffic Regulation Order (TRO) to introduce the waiting restrictions was 
advertised on the 21st February 2019 for a period of 24 days and received one 
objection.  (Objector 2)  
  
 
Background  
 
Pendleton Shopping Centre located adjacent to Hankinson Way, Rossall Way and 
Pendleton Way is one of the most popular areas for shopping in Salford, as well as 
being a busy bus interchange which is used by many services to access a variety of 
destinations within Salford and Greater Manchester more widely. 
 
Complaints have been received that pedestrians find access to/from and within the 
area difficult especially crossing Hankinson Way to access the shops and 
businesses. This isn’t helped by the large quantity of pedestrian guardrail which acts 
as a barrier between the shopping area, the surrounding residential areas and car 
parks. The current layout is unattractive to pedestrians and feels unsafe, which 
thereby discourages people from visiting the shopping area as well as using the 
extensive bus services. 
 
Buses are also having difficulty, in particularly accessing the many bus stops in the 
area, which can lead to delays and potential issues with punctuality and reliability. 
 
In order to improve road safety and access for pedestrians to encourage a greater 
use of the nearby shopping and business facilities and bus services it is proposed to 
implement a scheme and associated Traffic Regulation Orders. 
 
These include a 20mph speed limit, traffic calming measures (Flat topped road 
humps) and updated waiting and loading restrictions to reflect the new layout. 
 
The existing bus lanes on Hankinson Way will be removed as part of the scheme, to 
enable the provision of wider footways and improved bus waiting facilities to be 
provided. Following analysis, the removal of the bus lanes in the area is not 
anticipated to have an adverse effect on bus services in the area. 
 
As part of the proposals it is proposed to formalise the one way taxi rank/loading bay 
on the service road adjacent to Rossall Way by providing a Traffic Regulation Order 
to reflect the current operation. 
 

Page 16



 

 3

The Traffic Regulation Order (TRO) to introduce the waiting restrictions was 
advertised on the 21st February 2019 for a period of 24 days and received one 
objection, objector 1.    
 
The Speed Limit Order (SLO) to introduce the 20mph Speed Limit Zone was 
advertised on the 21st February 2019 for a period of 24 days and received one 
objection, objector 2.  
 
 
Proposals   
 
Introduction of: 
 
Restricted Parking Zone- No waiting no loading exce pt in signed bays 
(Including no parking on footways .) 
 
   
Hankinson Way Both sides From a point 25 metres 

south west from its 
junction with A576 
roundabout to its junction 
with the Heywood 
Way/Churchill Way 
roundabout. 
 

Rossall Way Both sides For its full length 
 

Pendleton Way Both sides From a point 25 metres 
south west from its 
junction with A576 
roundabout to its junction 
with the entrance to 
Pendleton Shopping City 
Car Park.  

Loganberry Avenue Both sides  For its full length 
 

Heywood Way/Churchill 
Way Roundabout 

Both sides For its full length 

 
Taxi Rank – 24 hours 
   
Hankinson Way North west side From a point 44 metres 

south west from the 
extended south western 
kerbline of Loganberry 
Avenue in a south 
westerly direction for a 
distance of 16 metres. 

 
Taxi Rank /Loading Bay – Taxi Rank 10am – 5pm, load ing Bay 5pm-10am 

Page 17



 

 4

   
Rossall Way Service Road South side In the parallel service road 

adjacent to the south west 
side of Rossall Way from a 
point 83 metres from the 
junction with Rossall way 
with Hankinson Way in a 
north westerly direction for 
a distance of 50 metres. 

 
 
 
Loading Bay – 24 hours 
   
Hankinson Way North west side From a point 67 metres 

north east from the 
extended north eastern 
kerbline of Loganberry 
Avenue in a north easterly 
direction for a distance of 
34 metres. 

 
One Way Street 
   
Rossall Way Service Road In a north westerly 

direction 
The parallel service road 
adjacent to the south west 
side of Rossall Way from a 
point 83 metres from the 
junction of  Rossall Way 
with Hankinson Way in a 
north westerly direction for  
50 metres. 

 
20MPH SPEED LIMIT ZONE 
Rossall Way Full length 
Hankinson Way Full length 
Pendleton Way Full length including service road spur 
Loganberry Avenue Full length 
 
Revocations – Pendleton TRO 
 
Order Revocation TRO Reference 
THE CITY OF SALFORD 
(HANKINSON WAY, SALFORD 
6)(INTRODUCTION OF NEW 
PROHIBITION OF WAITING 
AND LOADING/UNLOADING 
BAN) ORDER 1995 

In its entirety  913 

CITY OF SALFORD (CENTRAL 
AREA)(RESTRICTION OF 

Schedule 
 

W188 

Page 18



 

 5

WAITING)ORDER 1970 Hankinson Way – west 
side from Heywood Way to 
Market Way 
 
Hankinson Way – east 
side for its whole length 
 
Rossall Way – on both 
sides for its whole length 

THE CITY OF 
SALFORD(HANKINSON WAY, 
SALFORD)(PROHIBITION OF 
WAITING)(PEAK HOUR 
LOADING/UNLOADING 
RESTRICTIONS) AND 
(INTRODUCTION OF A BUS 
STOP CLEARWAY) ORDER 
2000 

In its entirety  1127 

THE CITY OF 
SALFORD(HANKINSON WAY, 
SALFORD)(REVOCATION OF 
RESERVED BUS LANE ORDER 
AND LOADING RESTRICTION 
AND INTRODUCTION OF 24 
HOUR BUS ONLY 
LANE)ORDER 2000 

In its entirety 1122 

THE CITY OF SALFORD 
(REVOCATION AND 
ESTABISHMENT OF HACKNEY 
CARRIAGE STANDS AND 
PROHIBITION OF STOPPING 
ON HACKNEY CARRIAGE 
STANDS) ORDER 2003 

Schedule 2 
 
Rossall Way – Rossall 
Way, Salford, south west 
side from a point 31 
metres north west of the 
north westerly kerbline of 
Hankinson Way in a north 
westerly direction for a 
distance of 43 metres. 
 
Schedule 10 
 
Rossall Way, Salford, 
south west side from a 
point 31 metres north west 
of the north westerly 
kerbline of Hankinson Way 
in a north westerly 
direction for a distance of 
43 metres.   
 
  
 

1193 

Page 19



 

 6

 
THE CITY OF 
SALFORD(HANKINSON WAY, 
SALFORD)(REVOCATION OF 
RESERVED BUS LANE ORDER 
AND LOADING RESTRICTION 
AND INTRODUCTION OF 24 
HOUR BUS ONLY LANE) 
ORDER 2000 

In its entirety 1130 

SALFORD CITY COUNCIL 
(ROSSALL WAY, 
SALFORD)(EXTENSION OF 
EXISTING HACKNEY 
CARRIAGE STAND) ORDER 
2011 

In its entirety 1400 

SALFORD CITY COUNCIL 
(ROSSALL WAY, 
WALKDEN)(INTRODUCTION 
OF GOODS VEHICLE LOADING 
ONLY)ORDER 2013 

In its entirety 1682 
 

SALFORD CITY 
COUNCIL(ROSSALL WAY AND 
PENDLETON WAY, SALFORD) 
(REVOCATION AND 
ESTABLISHMENT OF 
HACKNEY CARRIAGE STANDS 
AND PROHIBITION OF 
STOPPING ON A HACKNEY 
CARRIAGE STAND) ORDER 
2013 

In its entirety 1679 

 
 
Consideration of Objections  
 
The following table summarises the general points raised by the objector to the 
20mph Speed limit Zone and provides a response to the points raised:  
 
 
OBJECTION 
 

RESPONSE 
 

 
Objector 1 
 
20mph zones are being introduced on 
ideological reasons rather than on 
evidence of risks for instance 
accidents 
 
 
 

 
 

A large number of evaluation studies 
have demonstrated a link between the 
introduction of 20mph zones and a 
subsequent reduction in casualties. The 
size of the reductions and the 
consistency of results over a wide 
number of areas are further evidence for 

Page 20



 

 7

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
There is no evidence of 20mph Speed 
Limit Zones being effective negligible 
reduction in accidents and 
compliance is low. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Low compliance of the proposed 
20mph speed limit zone encourages 
less respect of the law. 
 

this link. 

There is similarly strong evidence 
showing the benefits of traffic calming 
measures, which are used in 20mph 
zones. 

As well as road safety benefits, it is 
important to highlight the contribution that 
20mph zones can have in encouraging 
more physical activity, such as walking 
and cycling, by contributing towards a 
safer environment. 

An examination of the collision record for 
the Hankinson Way/Rossall Way area in 
Pendleton shows that although there isn’t 
a major accident problem in the area, 
there have been 26 reported injury 
accidents since 2004 of which 6 involved 
pedestrians, with 4 being classified as 
serious.  
 
It is considered that the proposed 
measures including traffic calming and 
20mph speed limit zone will contribute 
towards reducing the level and severity 
of collisions in the area particular in 
relation to pedestrians.  This is 
particularly relevant considering that the 
proposed scheme will improve access for 
pedestrians in the area which will most 
likely lead to a greater number of 
pedestrians using the network.  
 
There are differing results from the 
introduction of 20mph Zones, regarding 
the reduction in the level of reported 
collisions. However, with schemes like 
this where physical features such as 
traffic calming measures are introduced, 
there is generally a reduction in traffic 
speeds, and hence a reduction in the 
number and severity of collisions and 
casualties. 
 
This 20mph speed limit zone includes 
traffic calming measures, flat top road 
humps, in addition to the proposed 
narrowing of the carriageway as part of 

Page 21



 

 8

 
 
 
Monies used on the scheme could be 
used on other more worthy and 
effective measures. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
The roads being treated are heavily 
used by buses, and it is considered 
that the scheme will delay journey 
times 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

the new scheme will also ensure that this 
20mph speed limit zone is self-enforcing. 
 
The funding for this scheme was from the 
Central Government Local Growth Deal 
fund which was has been specifically 
allocated to transport schemes.  

This programme involves a series of road 
improvements across Salford and Bolton 
to make the local transport network more 
efficient. 

It aims to make travel easier for 
everyone, including public transport 
users, drivers, pedestrians and cyclists. 
Bus passengers will see shorter, more 
reliable journey times. 

The improvements will also help 
encourage economic growth by providing 
better access to employment 
opportunities, and health, education, 
retail and leisure facilities. 

The introduction of a 20mph speed limit 
is not expected to have a significant 
impact on bus journey times, particularly 
as the new speed limit would only apply 
to a relatively small area. Given that 
buses using Hankinson Way and/or 
Rossall Way are likely to be stopping to 
serve one of the bus stops, and taking 
into account the road layout and typical 
amount of roadside activity in this 
location, lower speeds for buses are 
likely to be ‘self-enforced’ already. 
 

Objector 2  
 
Issues were raised concerning the lack of 
facilities for Private Hire vehicles in the 
Hankinson Way/Rossall Way area close 
to the shops and facilities. It was 
mentioned that there was a phone which 
people could use to call private hire 
vehicles but no place for them to drop 
off/pick up passengers 
 
 

 
 
The situation for dropping off/picking up 
passengers on Rossall Way remains as it 
is, that being that the area adjacent to 
the Post Office/shops is taken up by a 
taxi rank and bus stop clearways, which 
would not permit it. However, there are 
car parks on Rossall Way which could be 
used for boarding/alighting passengers.  
 
On Hankinson Way, the proposals result 

Page 22



 

 9

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Can use the nearby car parks, but that is 
not where customers wish to be dropped 
off. It was mentioned that the Post Office 
is a particular popular destination for 
customers. This would be an issue 
especially for elderly customers. 
 
Mentioned that there had been a process 
to identify areas for private hire vehicles 
to drop off and pick up passengers and 
that facilities were provided for buses, 
taxis, but not private hire vehicles. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

in bus stop clearways covering the main 
extents, although there is a short 
proposed taxi rank. There is a loading 
bay for goods vehicles adjacent to the 
shops on Hankinson Way. To provide a 
drop off and pick up area for Private Hire 
vehicles on Hankinson Way it is 
suggested that this loading bay be 
amended to enable all vehicles to load 
and unload within this bay. 
 
The nearby Tesco car park has a facility 
whereby private hire vehicles can drop 
off/pick up passengers. 
It is considered that the car park, access 
from Pendleton Way is relatively close to 
the Post Office and the nearby shops. 
 
As part of the detailed design process a 
meeting was arranged with 
representatives of the Private Hire trade. 
The intention was to provide areas within 
the car parks for this purpose, however 
as the design progressed, the availability 
of this space was withdrawn by the land 
owner. Unfortunately it is not possible to 
provide any additional areas on the 
highway for picking up/dropping off close 
to the shops as there isn’t adequate 
space for this and for the other demands 
in the area. However the suggested 
amendments, enabling all vehicles to use 
the Loading Bay on Hankinson Way to 
load and unload, which includes 
passengers. 

 
Deliberations of the Traffic Advisory Panel  
The matter is to be considered at a meeting on the 4th April 2019. The objectors have 
been informed of the date and time of the meeting should they wish to attend.  
 
Recommendation  
It is recommended, following consideration of the objections received, that an 
amended scheme be introduced, which relaxes the restriction on the Loading Bay to 
allow all vehicles to load and unload within the bay. 

 
 
KEY COUNCIL POLICIES:  Local Transport Plan 

 
EQUALITY IMPACT ASSESSMENT AND IMPLICATIONS:  
 

Page 23



 

 10

The proposed improvements including 20mph Speed Limit Zone will make the 
highway network and surrounding area more accessible for all road users. 
 

 
 
ASSESSMENT OF RISK:  
 
None 

 
 
LEGAL IMPLICATIONS:  
 
Not applicable  

 
 
FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS:  
 
The scheme is being promoted by Transport for Greater Manchester (“TfGM”) on 
behalf of Greater Manchester Combined Authority (“GMCA”), in association with 
Salford City and Bolton Councils as part of the Greater Manchester Growth and 
Reform Deal therefore the scheme delivery costs will be externally funded by GMCA 
 

 
 
PROCUREMENT IMPLICATIONS:  
 
Not applicable  
 
 
 
HR IMPLICATIONS Supplied by: N/A. 
 

 
 
OTHER DIRECTORATES CONSULTED: None.

 
  
CONTACT OFFICER: Steven Ashton TEL NO: 0161 779 4912  
 
 
WARDS TO WHICH REPORT RELATES:  Langworthy 
 
 
Ben Dolan 
Strategic Director, Place 
 
 

Page 24



 

 

Redacted Objection Number 1 

 

I would like to object to the aspect of this order concerning a new 20mph speed limit zone. I 

am unhappy about the burgeoning number of 20mph zones within Salford, and feel that this 

proposed zone in particular is inappropriate for the following reasons: 

1. 20mph zones seem to be a kind of political ‘flavour of the month’, and are being 

introduced based on ideological reasons rather than on evidence-based consideration of 

their actual need. Whilst I accept that government guidelines on this matter are 

ambiguous, they provide at least a suggestion that these zones should only be 

introduced based on evidence of risk (for example, repeated occurrences of traffic 

accidents at a particular spot, or an actual incidence of pedestrian injury at a particular 

junction). As far as I am aware, there is no such data relating to the area of Pendleton in 

question. 

2. Recent well-publicised government-commissioned research seems to suggest both that 

there is negligible reduction in accidents where 20mph zones are introduced, and that 

compliance is low (see also point 3 below). A link to a news article reporting on this 

research is given at the end of this list. These findings further undermine the purpose of 

a 20mph zone in this case. 

3. As noted above, motorist compliance is in reality very low in 20mph zones, possibly 

because drivers perceive the rule is unreasonable, or inconsistent with actual road 

topography or pedestrian density. In my view, this is a very serious fault with 20mph 

zones, because they reveal a lack of public support and create a culture in which it is 

acceptable to ignore the law, and most people do in fact ignore it; this ‘lawless mindset’ 

can then start to undermine respect for the law more generally (so that, for example, it 

then becomes more acceptable to run a red light or park on the approach to a 

pedestrian crossing, because traffic rules are no longer considered authoritative). 

4. The proposed 20mph zone is to apply 24 hours a day, even though traffic and pedestrian 

density are very different at different times. Late at night, for example, when there are 

few or no pedestrians and little or no other traffic, and the road is unobstructed, it might 

Page 25



 

 

be felt that the proposed speed limit makes no sense. What is more important is for 

drivers to use their skill and experience to decide on a suitable speed to drive at based 

on actual conditions (traffic, pedestrian density, weather etc.), to demonstrate other 

road safety behaviours (for example, always indicating before exiting a roundabout), and 

for there to be proper enforcement for dangerous driving, as well as better driver 

education (for example, through advertising). 

5. There is obviously a cost to introducing 20mph zones, which I understand to be in the 

very approximate region of £5,000 per zone. As the number of zones multiplies, the total 

cost of introduction clearly increases. It is my view that this money would be better 

spent on more pragmatic and effective road safety, facility and traffic flow measures. 

Examples would include: fixing existing radar speed signs on various roads which for 

some time have not been working; installing mirrors at dangerous junctions to improve 

visibility; widening the bus lanes around the Salford Precinct to allow buses to pass each 

other safely and without delay; resurfacing the public car park off Hankinson Way to 

prevent tripping and other accidents and landscaping to improve its poor visual 

appearance; converting the existing puffin crossings on Heywood Way to uncontrolled 

pedestrian crossings to improve both traffic flow and pedestrian movement; and 

widening the exit ramp from Rossall Way onto Broad street to avoid delays to 

westbound traffic (especially buses) during peak times. I feel the Council should spend 

the limited funds it has in a way that brings the greatest benefit to the city overall, and 

20mph zones do not in any way accomplish this. 

6. Finally, the roads in question are heavily used by buses. Slowing down buses and 

increasing journey times does little to encourage people to use public transport more. It 

would be better instead to focus on ways of speeding up public transport along key 

corridors. 

 

Link to news article referred to in Point 2 above: 

https://www.theguardian.com/world/2018/nov/23/little-evidence-20mph-speed-limit-cuts-

casualties-says-uk-report 

 

Page 26



 

 

Redacted Objection Number 2 

This is being sent, unfortunately three days late due to technical difficulties. We would 
however ask that it is included as part of the objections to the outlined proposals. 

 

Our objection is as follows: 

Yet again Salford Council has/is failing to recognise the importance of the residents and 
visitors to Salford Shopping Centre or the transport providers who take and collect people 
from the area. 

In October 2014 we were advised at a meeting, chaired by [], that ALL interested parties 
would be canvassed and their opinions sought.  

We have provided ample issues of concern, including: 

• Private Hire Operators pay a considerable amount of money per annum to have free phones 

operating in the centre. 

• Private Hire Vehicles bring people to the centre. 

• Private Hire vehicles are available 24/7 

this is only a selection of issues. 

The initial proposals seemed to indicate that there was thought being given to drop off points 
in and around the centre, however at the only consultation since this seems to have been 
thrown out. The reason being that the [] will not give any space for such a facility. 

So that is it?? 

The people using the centre will be forced to use Hackney Carriages which are more 
expensive, are not always available and are not always suitable for some disabled individuals. 

We are advised that PHV can pick up in the car parks, but that is not fair on the passenger 
who will, possibly,  end up being dropped off/picked up away from where they want to be, 
have to pay a little more and will have to contest with traffic in these normally busy areas of 
traffic movement. 

[] wrote in 2012 that he was actively looking to identify "private hire taxi drop off points", 
seven years later in the midst of a clean air challenge there remains a failure to recognise the 
needs of the general public, the additional emissions that will be created as people drive 
around car parks looking for customers, or waiting while someone reverses into a space. Yet 
despite the clean air campaign, whilst the council responded to the rank emissions by stating  
that 'black cabs turn there engines off while they wait' this does not account for the potential 
144 engine starts in the movement cycle of a taxi rank? 

In Salford there are approximately 100 Hackney Carriages and over a 1000 Private Hire 
Vehicles, yet an industry providing less than 10% of the possible transport options are 

Page 27



 

 

afforded ranks, signage and seemingly an advantage. This is completely unfair on the private 
hire businesses, the drivers and the passengers. 

The argument often put forward is that Hackney Carriages are Wheelchair friendly but again 
that is misleading, with only 8% of the disabled population needing a wheelchair who caters 
for the remaining 92%? Those who have frequently stated that they prefer a saloon type 
vehicle. 

Why will people wanting to collect a pension now use Rossall Way? They may as well go 
somewhere else where they do not have to walk a distance from a car park. 

Why would a business provide a freephone in any shopping venue if councils just decide to 
occupy the space nearest too it with a Taxi Rank? 

How long will the Centre remain viable if the council continues to try and stop people getting 
to it? 

How can the council quote the following: 

“there will be no detrimental impact to passengers wishing to visit the post office as 
passengers are able too be set down/picked up from the post office if a taxi is ordered” 

“Due to bus stop re-locations required for the prohibition of driving, there is 
insufficient space available on Rossall Way for a Taxi Rank”  

any now ignore these statements completely? 

The proposal is geared towards the Hackney Carriages and the buses, neither of which 
provide a door to door transport service 24/7. Buses do not run for 24 hours and Hackney 
Carriages are notably absent during rush hours due to school contracts and more viable 
opportunities at the transport interchanges.  

Finally the issue of security, why should a pensioner now have to walk further to get a 
vehicle to take them home, why should they have to wait in a car park for a vehicle to arrive 
just because someone has considered that it is not necessary as opposed to listening and 
surveying the users and suppliers. 

We would also ask that we are invited to attend any future meetings in relation to this 
proposal. 

 

 

Page 28


	Agenda
	3 Minutes of meeting held on 7 March 2019.
	4 City of Salford (Hallsworth Road, Winton) (Prohibition of Waiting) Order 2019.
	5 Hankinson Way / Rossall Way Area, Pendleton - SBNI - TRO 2232.
	Report
	Objection


